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ADDENDUM THREE 

 QUESTIONS and ANSWERS 
 
 
Date:  January 4, 2016  
 
To:  All Bidders  
 
From:  Michelle Thompson/Teresa Fleming, Buyers 

AS Materiel State Purchasing Bureau 
 
RE:  Addendum for Request for Proposal Number 5176Z1 
  to be opened January 12, 2016 at 2:00 p.m. Central Time 
 
 

Questions and Answers 
 
Following are the questions submitted and answers provided for the above mentioned Request for 
Proposal. The questions and answers are to be considered as part of the Request for Proposal. It is 
the Bidder’s responsibility to check the State Purchasing Bureau website for all addenda or 
amendments. 
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Questio
n 

Number 

RFP 
Section 

Reference 

RFP 
Page Number 

Question State Response 

1.    
To clarify whether the State would be interested in 
proposals directly from a provider of Medical 
Management services or if this is solely intended 
to seek a bundled Claims Administration and 
Medical Management program?  A large number 
of entities are now separating the two in order to 
maximize costs but I wasn’t sure how the State of 
Nebraska was proceeding and did not want to 
waste your procurement team’s time if only TPA’s 
are being considered.  

The State is only considering a Third-Party 
Administrator.  

2.  Section F Page 9: 
Insurance 
Requirements  

indicates “The Contractor should furnish the State, 

with their proposal response, a certificate of 

insurance coverage complying with the above 

requirements to the attention of the Buyer at 402-

471-2089 (fax).”   

Does the State want the Bidder/Contractor to 

submit the Certificate of Insurance with the 

proposal AND fax the Certificate of Insurance prior 

to submission?  

The bidder may submit a certificate of 
insurance along with the proposal response. 

3.  III Terms 
and 
Conditions 

Page 7 - 
Proposal 
Format:   

Does the State expect a response to each section 

or only a comment that notes exception or any 

major deviation? 

The bidder may provide a comment that notes 
an exception or any major deviation. 

4. III Terms Page 7 - Are the boxes (Accept) or (Reject) required to be The initials may either be in ink or typed into 
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and 
Conditions 

Proposal 
Format:   

initialed in ink or may initials be typed into the 

boxes?  

the boxes. 

5. Section A. 
Project 
Requirement
s 

Page 30: Return to Work “Oversight” - Please describe what 

is meant by Return to Work (RTW) Oversight.  

Please detail what is currently being performed 

with respect to this requirement.  

See Section IV, C Scope of Work, 5. Return 
to Work Procedures.  

6.   Please provide the State’s written Return to Work 

plan.  

The State currently does not have a written 
return to work plan.  This is a requirement of 
this RFP.  See Section IV, C Scope of Work, 
5. Return to Work Procedures.    

7.   Field Nurse Case Management. 

i.  Please provide the estimated annual number 

of hours required for telephonic case 

management.  

ii.    Please provide the estimated annual number 

of hours required for field case management.  Is 

the use of an ancillary service provider for field 

case management acceptable to the State?  If 

yes, are the direct costs associated 

 
 
Since the nurse was part of the on-site staff, 
the State is not able to determine this 
information. 
 
The number of hours is not available. 
Outside field case management is 
acceptable and charged as an allocated 
expense.  

8. Section 3 Page 32 Claim 
Intake and Set 
up 

What is the State’s current injury reporting 

processes internally and to the TPA? 

Currently, an injured employee reports the 
incident to his or her supervisor.  The 
supervisor provides the employee with the 
first report injury form.  This form is then 
turned into Human Resources where 
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additional forms are completed.  Human 
Resources then uploads all the documents 
into the TPA’s software system. 

9. Section i Page 52 To evaluate staffing considerations please provide 

the current staffing model for services provided to 

the State by the TPA.  Please include % of FTE by 

job position/title including management, 

supervisory, account management, adjuster (by 

type of adjuster, i.e., medical vs. indemnity) and 

support personnel? 

See Attachment A for the current staffing 
model.  The bidder should provide their own 
staffing model based on the requirements of 
the RFP. 

10. Claim 

Losses: 

 

 Please provide the number of newly report 

medical claims and newly reported indemnity 

claims for the past 10 years per policy year or 

incident year.   

See Attachment B for Claims Opened by 
Years 2010 – 2014.  
 
See Attachment 1, Cost Sheet - REVISED. 

11.   Please provide the number of currently open/re-

opened medical claims and current 

open/reopened indemnity claims (total pending 

inventory by claim type) per policy or incident year.  

See the response to Question #10. 
 

12.   Please provide an excel spreadsheet of all losses 

similar to what would be provided to any carrier for 

excess insurance to help determine shelf-life, 

severity of claims, types of claims, # of 

department/division/agency claims, etc.  

The State does not have excess insurance 
for workers compensation.    
 
See the response to Question #10. 
 
 

13. Attachments  May the bidder propose an alternative optional No. Please provide Attachment 1, Cost Sheet 
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1 and 2 Cost 
Sheets 

pricing structure if it is beneficial to the State?  - REVISED as required with the RFP 
response. 

14.   Claim Reporting Fees (Intranet) – Please describe 

what this means.  Does it mean the State will 

report approximately 1171 claims via on-line 

access directly to the TPA claim system?  Will the 

State actually do the data entry via on-line access 

to report the claim?  Does the 1,171 include 

record only incidents? 

The State currently can report claims on-line 
through the Human Resources.  
 
The majority of claims are reported online, 
i.e. 90%. There are instances when claims 
are reported via email and/or fax.   
 
The 1,171 does include record only incidents.  

15.   The Estimated Claim Reporting Fees and Outside 

Claims Investigation costs indicate 1,171.  Please 

describe what that indicates and how the number 

1,171 was determined 

See Attachment 1, Cost Sheet – REVISED. 
 
 

16.   It appears the Cost Sheet column J should be 

populated with a single unit cost.  Please confirm. 

No, column J should not be populated with a 
single unit cost.  Columns K, L, M, N and O 
should indicate the fixed cost.  A total cost is 
not requested on the cost sheet. 

17   Should Columns K, L, M, N, and O include the 

Total Cost based on the quantity or should the 

single unit cost be indicated in Columns K, L, M, N 

and O?  

See the response to Question #16. 

18.   Please describe in detail how OSHA reporting is 

currently handled.  

i.    Does the State provide information to the TPA 

regarding accommodations in the work place to 

The State is exempt from OSHA 
requirements. The TPA is not required to 
report anything.  
Yes 
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maintain accurate restricted duty days?   

ii.   Does the State help manage and provide 

oversight for the TPA regarding accurate data 

documentation regarding first aid, privacy cases, 

etc.? 

iii.   Does the State understand that the TPA is not 

responsible for OSHA compliance; that the TPA is 

only responsible for inputting data as provided and 

agreed to by the State and for producing OSHA 

logs?  

 
 
 
Yes 
 
 
 
 
 
Yes 

19.   RMIS Access – Basic.  Please describe what 

Basic means?  What do these users need to 

access and for what purpose? 

Contractor must have a basic system that 
allows the State to access notes and provide 
simple loss runs, along with tools to 
communicate with the adjuster.   

20.   RMIS Account Manager:  Please describe the 

primary duties of the designated RMIS Account 

Manager. How many hours per year are 

designated for RMIS Account Manager?   

The primary duties include, but are not 
limited to; training of the State’s users, run 
specialty reports, help with TPA system 
issues. 
 
The number of hours will depend on the 
TPA’s system capabilities and issues. 

21.   The Cost Sheet requests a flat fee per bill for 

medical re-pricing.   

i.     Is the State requesting a flat fee per bill for 

reduction from billed charges to fee schedule 

 
 

 
A flat fee per bill for reduction from billed 
charges to amount paid including PPO 
Network Access, discounts or other 
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allowed amount OR a flat fee per bill for reduction 

from billed charges to amount paid including PPO 

Network Access discounts or other reductions 

below allowed fee schedule?  

ii.    Are Bill Review Fees and PPO Network 

Access fees considered allocated loss adjustment 

expense (ALAE)? 

iii.   What are the current bill review and PPO 

Network access fees?   

iv.   Please provide bill review summary data for 

the most recent calendar or fiscal year: 

1. Total Bills per Year 
2. Total Lines per Year 
3. Total Dollar Amount Billed Charges 
4. Total Dollar Amount Reduced to Fee         

      Schedule 
5. Total Dollar Amount Reduced below          

      Fee Schedule (PPO discounts or               
      other negotiated reductions) 

6. Total Fees for Fee Schedule                      
      reductions/re-pricing 

7. Total Fees for PPO Network                      
      Access Reductions 

 8.        Total Fees for other pricing services  

reductions below allowed fee schedule. 
 
 
 

 
Yes 
 
 
 
It is the bidder’s responsibility to provide a 
response to this requirement as part of the 
proposal response. 
 
 
See Attachment C – 2014 Medical Bill 
Review Summary and Attachment 1, Cost 
Sheet – REVISED. 
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v.     Who currently performs bill review? 

vi.    Please provide the name of the PPO Network 

utilized for the State. 

vii.   Does the incumbent TPA currently provide 

customized reporting?  If yes, please describe the 

customization and average annual cost associated 

with customized reporting. 

The current TPA (FARA DBA York Risk 
Services Group, Inc.). 
 
Coventry 
 
No, only standard bill review reporting. 
 

22. Section K.3: 
 Disabled 
Veteran 

 Does the TPA contract include the use of a 
Resident disabled veteran or business located in a 
designated enterprise zone?   

The contract award will comply with Neb. 
Rev. Stat. §73.107. 

23.   Does the consideration for resident disabled 
veteran status apply for a bidder who chooses to 
sub-contract with a firm that can provide a resident 
disabled veteran that may provide a small 
percentage of the services provided?   

The preference is given to the primary bidder. 
This preference is not extended to a 
subcontractor.  

24.   Would consideration be applied if the bidder hired 
a disabled veteran for a portion of the services 
provided in the scope of service?   

No.  

25. Section 11. 
H 

page 38: This 
section indicates 
the TPA will 
provide on-site 
training 

Please provide the estimated number of hours and 
locations per year necessary for on-site training to 
the State of Nebraska employees. 

Training will include, but not limited to the 
following: 

 Training will be conducted with all the 
HR Managers (approximately 84) at 
the inception of the contract.  

 Training new hires. 
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 Training and visits will be done with 
Agencies that have a higher than 
average workers’ compensation 
claims. 

 Traveling to job site(s) that may be 
up to 7 – 8 hours from the Risk 
Management’s office. 

 
The State prefers that there is no limit on the 
amount of training hours and/or ability to 
travel to do those trainings.  Contractor must 
assume all costs associated with training. 

26.   Are the trainings held in person or via WebEx?  In person training is required unless 
otherwise approved by the State.  

27. Section 12. 
Account 
Management 
and 
Stewardship 

Page 39 Approximately how many hours and travel trips 
are required per year for the dedicated Account 
Manager?  

The Account Manager is expected to be 
available to travel and assist Risk 
Management with those needs surrounding 
the workers’ compensation program. Travel 
may be for training, claim reviews, site visits, 
etc. See the response to Question #25.   

28. Section D. 
General 
Claim 
Requirement
s, 1. Vendor 
Information 

Page 39 Does the State currently any other unbundled 
ancillary services?  

Yes, but all are coordinated through the 
TPA’s services. 

29.   Please provide the current rates associated with 
this contract for claims administration and other 
ancillary services 

The current contract value is approximately 
$1.6 million per year for the TPA service.  
 
It is the bidder’s responsibility to provide a 
response to this requirement as part of the 
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proposal response. 

30. Cost 
addendum 

 You indicate that you expect 1171 outside 
investigations with an expected 360 new indemnity 
claims.  Please explain what you consider to be an 
outside investigation and what might trigger it. 
 

See the response to Question #15. 

31. 12,a 38 You require a dedicated account manager.  May I 
assume that this means that you want only one 
AE, one contact, for the State of Nebraska, but 
that individual may have a limited number of other 
clients? 
 

Dedicated means that only one account 
manager is assigned, but can have other 
accounts.  

32. B)1 53 You require a “total fixed price” for the work done. 
 However variables such as number of claims, and 
medical bills impact cost.  May we project a fixed 
cost based on the number of claims and bills that 
you have identified, but periodically “true up and 
modify” the costs if the exposures change? 
 

No, the fixed cost only refers to claims 
services as stated on the Cost Sheet, not 
allocated expenses. 

33.   Should the State change TPA's, it appears as if 
the intention is to move all legacy claims to the 
new TPA? If so, please provide the estimated total 
number of legacy claims being moved, broken out 
by claim type (Indemnity vs. Medical Only) 
 

See the response to Question #15. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

34.   How many users does the State require for on-line 
access?  

Currently, the State has approximately 125-
150.   
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Per Section IV, F Technical Requirements - 
Technology, 11 Other/General 
Requirements, e, “The State of Nebraska will 
require web-top access to the TPA system 
with no limitation on the number of users or 
access to the State of Nebraska claims data 
and information stored on the TPA system.” 

35.   Please provide a summary of 2015 number of 
Bills, Billed Charges, Fee Schedule Reductions, 
PPO Reductions, Specialty Review Reductions, 
and Total Allowed.  
 

See the response to Question # 21. 

36.   Would the State prefer we include full examples of 
standard and customer service reports or simply 
just a snapshot of what they will look like and 
include? 
 

The State would prefer full examples of 
standard and customer service reports.  

37.   Are staff members providing medical 
management/bill review services required to be 
located in the State of Nebraska? 
 

No 

38   Does the State currently utilize a certified MCO 
plan? If so, is that a requirement for this proposal? 

No. 

39.   Can the following information be provided for 
2013, 2014 and 2015? 
o   Number of medical bills processed. 
o   Total medical paid. 
o   Percentage of medical bills subject to PPO 

contractual discounts. 
o   Percentage of savings based on fee 

See the response to Question #21. 
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schedule reductions. 
o   Percentage of savings based on PPO 

reductions. 
o   Number of pharmacy scripts filled. 
o   Total pharmacy paid. 
o   Number of Nurse Triage calls completed. 
o   Number of referrals for FCM services. 
o   Number of referrals for TCM services. 
o   Fees paid for all medical management 

services: 
§  Bill Review 
§  PPO Access 
§  Nurse Triage 
§  FCM Services 
§  TCM Services 
 

40.   Can a list be provided of the markets/areas with 
the highest concentration of injuries and medical 
bill utilization? 

Department of Roads, Department of Health 
and Human Services, and Department of 
Corrections.  

41.   Does the inability to affirm that a responder 
cannot attest to the Nebraska Contractor affidavit 
prevent the responding organization from being 
considered? 
 

This is not an RFP requirement.  It is for 
reporting purposes that is conducted by the 
State.  

42.   How long has the current service provider 
worked with the State? 
 

Approximately 9 years.  

43.   What is the reason for the issuance of the RFP? The contract has exhausted all renewal 
periods. 
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44.   Can the number of claims by type (ie Indemnity, 
medical only, incident) be provided by year for 
2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, and 2015? 

No. Please use claim voluming in pricing 
documents. The State’s claims stay pretty 
consistent year in and year out. 
 
See Attachment B for Claims Opened by 
Years 2010 – 2014.  
 

45. G. 
Submission 
of Proposals 

3 Does the State require only one (1) original 
response to the RFP?  If not, please indicate 
desired quantity. 
 

Yes, the State only requires one (1) original. 

46. M. 
Mandatory 
Requirement
s 

5 We assume the State requires a response to 
Section IV, Project Description and Scope of 
Work, but it's not identified accordingly.    
 

The response to Section IV, Project 
Description and Scope of Work may be 
identified as the Technical Approach. 

47. F. Insurance 
Requirement
s, Item 4 

10 To clarify, please confirm that the State requires 
appropriate certificates of insurance to be 
submitted with response.  If so, where should they 
be inserted in to the response sequence as 
identified in M. Mandatory Requirements? 
 

The bidder may submit a certificate of 
insurance along with the proposal response.   
 
The certificate of insurance may be in a 
separate identified tab of the proposal 
response. 

48. I. Contractor 
Responsibilit
y 

11 Please provide insight into State's expectations 
with respect to "subcontractor's level of effort, 
tasks and time allocation" as it relates to this 
response.  How much detail is the State 
expecting? 
 

See Section V. Proposal Instructions, A. 
Proposal Submission, 2. Corporate Overview, 
j. 

49. DD. Penalty 18 Please define the parameters of "implementation." 
 Does the State envision any criteria for 
determining when to impose a penalty of $1.5M 
for failure to meet an implementation timeline? Is 

The implementation plan should discuss, at a 
minimum, the bidder's proposed schedule to 
set up its plan administration system, offices 
and staff, and transfer data from the prior 
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the State amenable to development of 
implementation performance criteria with potential 
penalties more closely tied to actual damages 
incurred by the State due to implementation delay 
issues caused by the TPA, rather than a one-time 
$1.5M penalty for any delay whatsoever?Will the 
State agree to tolling of implementation deadlines 
and timeframes for delays not caused by the TPA, 
including any delay caused by the State or 
circumstances outside of the control of the TPA? 
 

TPA (if applicable) to meet the July 1, 2016 
implementation date and receive claims.  The 
criteria for the penalty is failing to meet the 
implementation date of July, 1, 2016.  The 
penalty is permissive and not mandatory.  
The State has discretion in whether to 
impose the penalty.  The State will take into 
consideration force majeure and further 
considerations will take place during the 
discussion of the implementation process.   
 
See Section IV, H Implementation Plan 
 
 

50. KK. Taxes 20 Would the State be interested having the 
dedicated unit housed on a state property? 
 

It is the Contractor’s responsibility to provide 
all dedicated housing for staff. 

51. B. Business 
Requirement
s, Item e. 

31 Please define "service representative."  Is this 
classification relative to the claims adjusting team? 
 Or the account management/implementation 
team? 
 

This classification is relative to the claims 
management/implementation team.  

52. C. Scope of 
Work, #4, 
Item j 

33 Please expand on your comment: "medical only 
claims must undergo compensability screening."  
Specifically, does the State envision a three (3) 
contact scenario to accomplish the screening? 
 

Yes, the State does envision a three contact 
scenario to accomplish the screening; 
keeping in mind that the screening may still 
result in a finding that a claim is not 
compensable.  

53. C. Scope of 
Work, #4, 
Item k 
 

33 Please provide the State's current expense and 
time benchmarks for this conversion. 

It is the bidder’s responsibility to provide a 
response to this requirement as part of the 
proposal response. 
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54. C. Scope of 
Work, #4, 
Item o 
 

34 Would the State be willing to use the vendor's 
criteria for filing CIB reports? 

Yes, the State would be willing to use the 
contractor’s criteria for filing CIB reports as 
long as the criteria is within industry 
standards. 

55. C. Scope of 
Work, #6, 
Item g 
 

35 Please identify those current variables captured on 
the State's litigation calendar. 

The State’s data needs for a litigation 
calendar consists of normal information 
needed to manage a litigated case. If you are 
unsure of your capabilities, submit your 
current version of a litigation calendar.  

56. C. Scope of 
Work, #9, 
Item a 
 

36 Will the vendor be given standing reserve 
authority?  If so, then what amount? 

Yes, but limited until the State is content with 
the TPA’s reserving policy. Until the State is 
content with the TPA’s reserving policy, the 
TPA will be required to notify the State for all 
claims in which the reserves is set at $10,000 
or more.  

57. C. Scope of 
Work, #9, 
Item a 
 

36 Will be vendor be given standing settlement 
authority?  If so, then what amount? 

No, settlements must be approved by the 
Risk Manager or in the case of litigation by 
the Assistant Attorney General handling the 
claim.  

58. C. Scope of 
Work, #10, 
Item f 
 

37 What is the current caseload cap for the medical 
only claims adjuster? 

There is currently no caseload cap for a 
medical only claims adjuster.  However, the 
caseload for the adjuster must be feasible 
and acceptable to the State.  

59. C. Scope of 
Work, #11, 
Item h 

38 What is the State's current process for this 
training?  What enhancements would the State 
envision? 

Training is conducted on an as needed basis. 
It is the bidder’s responsibility to provide a 
response to this requirement as part of the 
proposal response. 
See the response to Question #25. 

60. C. Scope of 
Work, #12, 
Item a 

38 Does the State envision a "dedicated account 
manager" to the extent 100% of their time would 
be allocated to the management of the State's 

See the response to Question #31. 
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program? 
 

61. D. General 
Claim 
Requirement
s, #1, Letter 
b 
 

39 Please define "ancillary services." 
Ancillary services are equal to allocated 
expenses is defined as follows:   Allocated 
Loss Adjustment Expenses (ALAE):  All 
expenses allocable to a specific claim 
including but not limited to, claim indexing 
fees, legal expenses or attorneys’ fees, court 
costs or fees, fees for service of process, 
costs for depositions or examinations under 
oath, interest, costs for copies of any public 
records, transcription services, appraisal 
fees, cost of hospital or other medical 
reports, medical examinations, medical bill 
review or hospital bill review fees, PPO 
network fees, pharmacy processing fees, 
utilization review fees, private investigation, 
surveillance, professional photography, 
expert witness analysis or testimony,  
electronic legal billing, WC hearing/trial 
attendance, and field investigations. The 
definition of “allocated loss adjustment 
expense” shall be amended when, and to the 
extent, necessary to bring the definition into 
compliance with applicable law. 
 

62. D. General 
Claim 
Requirement
s, #2, Letter 
d 

39 Please identify the State's current MSP 
Compliance vendor. 

FARA DBA York Risk Services Group, Inc.   
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63. E. Technical 
Requirement
s - Managed 
Care 
Services, #2, 
Letter b 
 

40 Please elaborate on your exceptations regarding 
"transparency."  

TPA needs to disclose any managed care 
services that are marked up to the State from 
an outside vendor upon request. 

64. E. Technical 
Requirement
s - Managed 
Care 
Services, 
Section 3, 
Letter a 
 

40 Please define "Medical Management Product."  
Should the response be limited to one (1) specific 
product? 

All services that impact the cost of medical 
care for Workers’ Compensation claims.  The 
response should not be limited to one 
specific product. 

65. E. Technical 
Requirement
s - Managed 
Care 
Services, 
Section 4, 
Letter b. 
 

41 Please confirm this question relates to those 
metrics etc. related to the management of our 
managed care products. 

This requirement relates to how the 
Contractor can show the value of the 
services provided to the State. 

66. E. Technical 
Requirments 
- Managed 
Care 
Services, 
Section 5, 
Letter a 

41 Is the State requesting annual savings rates for all 
50 states, or just the State of Nebraska? 

The State is requesting annual savings for all 
of bidders’ clients.  Annual savings must be 
outlined by state.  
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67. E. Technical 
Requirement
s - Managed 
Care 
Services, 
Section 5, 
Letter b 
 

41 What savings caps are currently in place on the 
State's program? 

Currently, there are no saving caps on the 
State’s program. 

68. E. Technical 
Requirments 
- Managed 
Care 
Services, 
Section 8, 
Letter a 
 

42 Please identify the resources the State currently 
has in place with respect to Injury Coordinator and 
TCM. 

Each agency has a coordinator.  
 
See the response to Question #25. 

69. F. Technical 
Requirement
s - 
Technology, 
Section 11, 
Letter d 
 

47 Can the State provide insight into its current 
quality performance metrics? 

The bidder should provide the individual 
TPA’s services information on how they 
measure quality. 

70. F. Technical 
Requirement
s - 
Technology, 
Section 11, 
Letter e 

47 We assume the State simply requires affirmation 
that our system can accommodate an unlimited 
number of users.  Please confirm.  If we've 
misunderstood the question please elaborate. 

See the response to Question #34. 

71. F. Technical 47 With what other system(s) might we need to Currently, no other systems require data 



 

 

Byron L. Diamond 
Director 

Acting Director 

Pete Ricketts, Governor 

 

Page 19 

Requirement
s - 
Technology, 
Section 11, 
Letter f 
 

consolidate data? consolidation.  

72. F. Technical 
Requirement
s - 
Technology, 
Section 11, 
Letter g 
 

47 What is the State's current RMIS? Currently, the State does not utilize RMIS.  
However, this is a requirement for future 
functionality.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

73. Attachment 
1, Cost 
Sheet 

1 Please provide a breakdown of all open claims by 
experience period. 
 

The State is unable to define “experience” 
period. 

74. N/A N/A Please provide a copy of the in-force contract with 
the incumbent TPA, York Risk Services, and any 
other vendor with whom they may be partnering to 
service the State' program. 

This is public information and may be found 
on the State’s Contracts Database.  
Contract Number: 67404 O4 
 

75. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope of 
Work – C 
(3)-Claim 

32 Can you provide a copy of the current first report 
of injury/accident intake script? 

Section IV. Project Description and Scope of 
Work – C Scope of Work 3. Claim Intake and 
Set-up Requirements is hereby superseded 
and replaced by the following:   

 
TPA will utilize the pre-agreed script / 

https://statecontracts.nebraska.gov/Search/ViewDocument?D=DrW6ILV%2FXI9NL1KYfC9Irg%3D%3D
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Intake and 
Set-up 
Requirement
s (d) pre-
agreed 
script- 

question-set supplied by the Contractor to 
record required information for the first report 
of injury / accident.  
i. If TPA has its own script, can it be 
customized? 
ii. Are all questions on the intake script coded 
into a reportable field? 
iii. What is the available capacity for client 
specific questions? 
iv. Describe any limitations on the field size. 

76. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope of 
Work – C 
(4)-Claim 
Handling 
Practices – 
(d)  

33 Can you provide a copy of the current Claim 
Service Instructions (CSIs)? 

See Attachment D Special Handling 
Instructions 

77. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope of 
Work – C 
(4)-Claim 
Handling 
Practices – 
(h) 

33 Is there a State preferred electronic format for 
investigative photographs and videos?  If so, 
please explain. 

No.  

78. 
IV. Project 
Description 

33 Can you provide and/or explain the specific criteria 
for Medical Only conversions? 

It is the bidder’s responsibility to provide a 
response to this requirement as part of the 
proposal response. 
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and Scope of 
Work – C 
(4)-Claim 
Handling 
Practices – 
(k) 

79. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope of 
Work – C 
(4)-Claim 
Handling 
Practices – 
(o) 

34 Does this requirement supersede the TPAs best 
practice for Central Index Bureau reporting and re-
indexing? If so, can you explain how this process 
is directed, coordinated and communicated to the 
TPA?  

No, the Contractor’s best practice does not 
supersede the RFP requirement. 

80. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope of 
Work – C 
(5)-Return to 
Work (RTW) 
Procedures– 
(c) 

34 What type and/or method of communication is 
required to coordinate with the State’s LOA 
department? 

The State does not have a LOA department.  
 
The Contractor will be required to comply with 
all future RTW policies and procedures.  

81. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope of 
Work – C 
(5)-Return to 
Work (RTW) 

34 Can you provide a copy of the latest and/or 
example of the information detail contained within 
the weekly disability status report 

The report must include but is not limited to 
the following:  Number of open claims by 
each agency, number of closed claims by 
each agency, claim number, employee 
name, social security number, date of injury, 
date reported, injury reported, date of birth, 
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Procedures– 
(c) 

date of hire, if it is medical only, if it is 
indemnification, if it is report only and the 
location of the injury.   

82. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope of 
Work – C 
(7)-
Subrogation
– (b) 

35 Is it the intent of the State to have the subrogation 
unit “dedicated” to the State exclusively as part of 
your service team, or do you mean to imply that 
the subrogation team should be dedicated to 
subrogation claim handling only handling? 

It is up to the TPA how subrogation is 
handled. 

83. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope of 
Work – C 
(7)-
Subrogation
– (e) 

36 Does the State prefer subrogation expense be 
billed as an ALAE and as a %of recovery?  Please 
explain how you wish to calculate subrogation 
administration expense. 

Please see the response to Question #82.  
  
This service should be included in the flat 
fee. 

84. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope of 
Work – F-
Technical 
Requirement
s-
Technology 
(9)-Pricing 
Assumptions 
(a) & (b) (b) 

46 Does the State utilize any internal RMIS system?  
If so, please outline the system and data interface 
requirements and frequency if the TPA is 
expected to transfer data. 

See the response to Question # 72.  
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85. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope of 
Work – F-
Technical 
Requirement
s-
Technology 
(9)-Pricing 
Assumptions 
(a) & (b) (b) 

46 How many images are stored within the 
incumbents claim system that will be transitioned 
to the new TPA? Can you define what constitutes 
an image and the format in which the image is 
stored?  

The number of attachments associated with 
State of Nebraska claims as of 12/28/2015 
is 433,183. An image is one attachment to a 
claim file.  

Valid file extensions are: 

 pdf,doc,jpg,jpeg,rtf,wav,dot,xls,tif,tiff,t
xt,xst,mpg,mpeg,bmp,hpd,mdi,mp3,
wmv,gif,max,msg,zip,log,wbk,ppt,alb
m,wpd,csv, 

 wmf,pcx,dvf,psd,avi,eml,wma,mp4,x
ps,docx,xlsx,vod,odt,mov,3gp,ifo,vcb
,blp,bup,ifo,vob,ctx,mht,xml 

 

86. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope of 
Work – F-
Technical 
Requirement
s-
Technology 
(9)-Pricing 
Assumptions 
(a) & (b) (b) 

46 Is all historical claim and loss data housed in the 
incumbents claim system and be transitioned from 
one single source?  If not, please outline all the 
sources of data and the data housed in each data 
source. 

Yes. 

87. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope of 
Work – F-

46 Approximately how many claim records are 
currently contained within the State’s system 
and/or residing with the incumbent TPA subject to 
transfer? 

FARA currently has 62,912 claim records in 
the system. It would be anticipated there 
would be approximately 1200 additional 
claims in the system by July 1, 2016. 
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Technical 
Requirement
s-
Technology 
(9)-Pricing 
Assumptions 
(a) & (b) (b) 

 

88. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope of 
Work – F-
Technical 
Requirement
s-
Technology 
(11)-
Other/Gener
al 
Requirement
s (h) 

47 Please describe in further detail what you mean by 
“record keeping functionality”?  What is the State’s 
expectation of the TPA? 

Record keeping functionality is all data 
related to the case file. All data must be 
accessible for reporting purposes.   
 
It is the bidder’s responsibility to provide a 
response to this requirement as part of the 
proposal response. 
 

89. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope of 
Work – F-
Technical 
Requirement
s-
Technology 
(11)-

47 Can you provide a location code example/ 
The Contractor must use the location coding 
established by the State.  

A location code is a code for every entity 
within the states program. For example, 
within the state all agencies have its own 
number and divisions within each agency 
have their own sub-number.  
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Other/Gener
al 
Requirement
s (i) 

90. 
v. Proposal 
Instructions 
– A. 
Proposal 
Submission 
(i)-Summary 
of Bidder’s 
Proposed 
Personnel/M
anagement 
Approach 

52 Internal/external job postings cannot be completed 
until a contract is awarded, which could be as 
much as 4 months from now, for desk level claim, 
case management and supervisory personnel. 
However, key team personnel such as those 
utilized for program design, implementation, 
training, and operations can be identified with 
resumes/bios provided. At this stage of the 
process, the State is not expecting desk level 
claims and personnel be identified – is this 
correct? 

The State is requiring for the Bidder to outline 
the projected staff needed to perform the 
services in the contract within the proposal 
response.  
 
Bidder must comply with the RFP requirements 
for key personnel. 
 
Bidder should submit Attachment 3 – Staffing 
Worksheet for desk level personnel with the 
proposal response.  Job descriptions and 
employee’s numbers are acceptable to replace 
resumes for positions that will be filled after 
contract award and prior to contract execution. 

91. 
v. Proposal 
Instructions 
– B. Cost 
Proposal 
Requirement
s 

53 Please verify those items commonly referred to as 
Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses (ALAE) are 
NOT part of the “fixed fee.” 

Allocated Expense Definition: Allocated Loss 
Adjustment Expenses (ALAE):  All expenses 
allocable to a specific claim including but not 
limited to, claim indexing fees, legal 
expenses or attorneys’ fees, court costs or 
fees, fees for service of process, costs for 
depositions or examinations under oath, 
interest, costs for copies of any public 
records, transcription services, appraisal 
fees, cost of hospital or other medical 
reports, medical examinations, medical bill 
review or hospital bill review fees, PPO 
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network fees, pharmacy processing fees, 
utilization review fees, private investigation, 
surveillance, professional photography, 
expert witness analysis or testimony,  
electronic legal billing, WC hearing/trial 
attendance, and field investigations. The 
definition of “allocated loss adjustment 
expense” shall be amended when, and to the 
extent, necessary to bring the definition into 
compliance with applicable law. 
 

92. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope of 
Work – C, 
12, f, iv and 
v – 
Recommend
ations to 
reduce claim 
expenses 
and claim 
frequency 

38 Is the state interested in loss prevention services 
that could be provided as a way of supporting the 
claim expense and frequency reduction objectives 
cited in this part of the proposal? 

No.  

93. 
III. Terms & 
Conditions 

7 For clarity around “initial”, do you require a “inked” 
initial or is a simple “X” in the box adequate for 
each T&C 

See the response to Question #4. 
 

94. 
IV. Project 
Description 

33 Can you better define your desk level service 
expectation for “compensability screening” of 

It is the bidder’s responsibility to provide a 
response to this requirement as part of the 
proposal response. 
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and Scope of 
Work – C 
(4)-Claim 
Handling 
Practices – 
(j) 

medical-only claims?  
 

95. 
H. 
Independent 
Contractor 

11 Please verify the Contractor will secure at its own 
expense all personnel required to perform the 
services.   This would still be paid off the file 
correct, just identified by the TPA? 

All services need to be in a flat fee, this 
includes the cost of personnel.  For example, a 
bidder may not hire essential personnel (i.e. 
claims adjuster) as an independent contractor 
and charge it to the account as an allocated 
expense.  

96. 
JJ. Right to 
Audit 

19 In discussion of the audit and overpricing or 
overcharges, can you confirm this means the 
billing of the State, or does this include claims that 
may be Indemnity and should be medical only or 
vice versa? 

Yes, billing of the State.  

97. 
A3c,d. 
Project 
Requirement
s/Return to 
work and 
overnight 
and FCM 

30 Please describe what you mean by Oversight of 
return to work? Also, is there any requirement for 
a TCM? 

See the response to Question #6. 
 
It is the bidder’s responsibility to provide a 
response to this requirement as part of the 
proposal response. 
 
See Section IV, E. Technical Requirements – 
Managed Care Services, 8. 
Personnel/Caseloads 

98. 
2b Business 
requirements 

30 What are the thresholds for cash calls, check 
amount if daily transfers will occur for funding? 

Currently the State does not engage in daily 
transfers however the State is requiring this 
functionality in the RFP. 
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99. 
4A  Business 
requirements
/Service level 
guarantee/A
cceptable 
quality 

31 Will the state have a performance agreement or 
will this be measured on Sedgwick best practices? 

The State will have its own performance 
agreements and will develop these with the 
TPA. 

100. 
C 4j. Scope 
of 
Work/medic
al only 
claims must  
undergo 
compensabili
ty screening 

33 Please clarify what your expectations are of 
screening medical only claims for compensability 

See the response to Question #94.   

101. 
C 5b. 
Estimated 
return to 
work date for 
file coding  

34 Does the state require the estimated return to 
work date based on Examiner experience or ODG 
guidelines? 

Yes, ODG guidelines. 
 
 

102. 
C 6a. 
Litigation 
Management 

34 State has an approved panel.   If the State’s 
carrier also has a panel, this should be utilized in 
addition 

No carrier panel applies. 

103. 
C 7b 
Subrogation 

35 WC Examiners need to be located in NE, is this 
applicable here as well? 

No. 

104. 
C 12a 38 Please clarify definition of dedicated as page 31 

See the response to Question #31. 
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Account 
Management 

references wanting to know what other accounts 
the manager would handle 

105. 
D 1b. 
General 
Claims 
Requirement
s/unbundling 
ancillary 
services 

39 What vendors does the State use at the current 
time and for what programs? 

The current TPA is FARA DBA York Risk 
Services Group, Inc. 
 
 

106. 
4b.  General 
Claims 
Requirement
s/Quality 
Processes 

41 What current reports are shared with the State on 
quality? 

Audit results.  

107. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope of 
Work – C(5)-
Return to 
work (RTW) 
Procedures 
– (d) 

34 Does the State have an existing job bank?  If so, 
will the State include transition of the job bank 
data to the TPA during the program 
implementation? 

No existing job bank is available. 

108. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope of 
Work – D(1)-
General 

39 What ancillary services partners are currently 
used by the State? 

See the response to Question #105. 
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Claim 
Requirement
s (Not All-
Inclusive) – 
(b) 

109. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope of 
Work – E(2)-
Managed 
Care 
Services – 
(k) 

40 What was the 2014 and 2015 pharmacy spend? 
2014 - $777,906 
2015 - $953,540 

110. Cost 
addendum 

 You indicate that you expect 1171 outside 
investigations with an expected 360 new indemnity 
claims.  Please explain what you consider to be an 
outside investigation and what might trigger it. 

See the response to Questions #15.  

111. 12,a 38 You require a dedicated account manager.  May I 
assume that this means that you want only one 
AE, one contact, for the State of Nebraska, but 
that individual may have a limited number of other 
clients? 

See the response to Question #31. 

112. B)1 53 You require a “total fixed price” for the work done. 
 However variables such as number of claims, and 
medical bills impact cost.  May we project a fixed 
cost based on the number of claims and bills that 
you have identified, but periodically “true up and 
modify” the costs if the exposures change? 

No, fixed cost does not include allocated 
expenses.  

113. III, DD 18 You require a $1,5 Million potential penalty for See the response to Question #49. 
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failing to meet the date for implementation.  How 
is that defined?  Being able to accept a claim? 
Having all location codes in place? Completion of 
the contract by date of implementation? Having all 
take over claims set up, data mapped and in 
place?  This amount is more than the annual 
revenue on the entire business.  Is there flexibility 
in the amount?  We typically commit to around 
5%-10% of total contract for performance 
guarantees or penalties. 

114. 
III. Terms 
and 
Conditions 

Pgs. 7 – 29 Are the boxes (Accept) or (Reject) required to be 
initialed in ink or may initials be typed into the 
boxes? 

See the response to Question #4. 

115. 
IV. Project 
Description 
and Scope 
of Work, C. 
Scope, 10. 
Complianc
e / 
Caseloads, 
(f) 

Pg. 37 Of the 590 pending indemnity claims, are any 
categorized as Maintenance claims?  If so, do 
those claims have to be handled at the 140 
pending level; or, can they be handled at a 
different pending level? 

No, use the caseload requirement for all 
pending indemnity claims.  

116. 
2.a. – 
Technical 
Requiremen
ts Managed 
Care 

40 Does the State of Nebraska currently utilize a 24/7 
nurse triage program?  If so, what percentage of 
claims currently use this program? 

No  

117. 
11.i. - Other, 
General 

47 Can you provide a list of the current location 
coding hierarchy for us to be able to review 

See the response to Question #89. 
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Requiremen
ts 

compliance? 

118. 
Cost 
Proposal 

Attachment 1 Can you confirm that the State has required 1,171 
outside investigations per year and provide the 
number of associated hours? 

See the response to Question #15.  

119. 
Cost 
Proposal 

Attachment 1 Can you indicate where you would like claims 
administration fees included in your cost proposal 
document and preferred pricing format/model?  Is 
this on Row 21, Administration/Account 
Management, using your volume data indicated 
above?  Is a flat annual fee preferred, versus per 
unit pricing? 

See Attachment 1, Cost Sheet – REVISED  

 
 
This addendum will become part of the proposal and should be acknowledged with the Request for Proposal. 


